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	962-4591
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	IMPORTANT:  SUBMIT PROPOSAL IN SEALED PACKAGE WITH PROPOSAL NUMBER, CLOSING DATE AND BUYER’S NAME MARKED CLEARLY ON THE OUTSIDE TO:

	COUNTY OF FRESNO, Purchasing

4525 EAST HAMILTON AVENUE

FRESNO, CA  93702-4599

	Closing date of proposal will be at 2:00 p.m., on JULY 25, 2008

 ref date  \* MERGEFORMAT JULY 25, 2008.
PROPOSALS WILL BE CONSIDERED LATE WHEN THE OFFICIAL PURCHASING TIME CLOCK READS 2:00 P.M.

	Proposals will be opened and publicly read at that time.  All proposal information will be available for review after contract award.

	Clarification of specifications are to be directed to:  KEN VOZZA

 ref buyer KEN VOZZA, phone (559) 456-7110, FAX (559) 456-7831.

	

	NOTE THE following and attached ADDITIONS, DELETIONS AND/OR CHANGES TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 962-4591 AND INCLUDE THEM IN YOUR RESPONSE. PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THIS ADDENDUM WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

· The closing date for RFP No. 962-4591 has been changed to July 25, 2008 at 2:00 P.M.


	ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDUM NUMBER ONE (1) TO RFP 962-4591

	COMPANY NAME: 
	

	(PRINT)

	SIGNATURE: 
	

	NAME & TITLE: 
	

	(PRINT)


questions/answers
The following is in response to questions and comments submitted by vendors. The County responses are meant to change or add to the requirements and conditions previously stated.
1) Can you clarify which departments will access the system? How many departments?
a) It is the intent of this RFP to make this service available to all County Departments, and City agencies under the jurisdiction of the County of Fresno. The number of departments is not known.
2) Who currently prints the County of Fresno’s bill statements?

a) Outside the scope of this RFP. The purpose of this RFP is to locate a vendor that can process credit/debit card as well as e-check type payments only.

3) Who is your Billing Software Provider?

a) Outside the scope of this RFP. The purpose of this RFP is to locate a vendor that can process credit/debit card as well as e-check type payments only.

4) Which Billing Platform do you use?

a) Outside the scope of this RFP. The purpose of this RFP is to locate a vendor that can process credit/debit card as well as e-check type payments only.

5) In what formats can your output files be generated?  Do you have a preference?

a) Data files generated by the County for use by the e-payments system can be generated as csv (Comma Separated Values) files, Microsoft Excel files, or Microsoft Access files. The preference being csv (Comma Separated Values).

6) What is your current method of transmitting data?

a) The County utilizes several different methods to transmit data, determined by the technology available in the locations data is being transferred between.
7) Do you currently have an IVR system in place? If, so who is it?

a) The Auditor-Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector’s office currently has 2 (2) IVR systems in place, one (1) through our A/R vendor, Columbia Ultimate Systems, and one (1) through our On-line Tax Collection vendor, Sonant.

8) What others systems will the application need to integrate with?

a) The system should be capable of generating a csv (Comma Separated Values) file which can be manipulated to provide data to systems such as the RP System, the County Tax system, or PeopleSoft.

9) Is the county interested in the presentment of bills in PDF format or recurring payment options?

a) Not as part of this RFP.

10) Would the County generate all APN?

a) APN stands for Assessor’s Parcel Number and are generated by the County Assessor’s office.

11) On question #3 “The system should allow for matched payments, payments directly tied to live data, and be able to validate the amount, and identifiers such as APN to the live data. “ How often will the County provide live data? Hourly, daily, or weekly?

a) This will need to be negotiated with the winning vendor; most likely the information will be refreshed on a weekly or monthly schedule.

12) On Question #9 “The system must have real-time reporting, available via secured web-site. Security should be administered by designated County employee.” Does the County want real-time updates on account payment reporting hourly or only twice a day like noted in question #10?

a) The desire is for real time reporting. If a payment is made at 12:05, it should be able to be viewed at 12:06. Question #10 states “The system should allow each cashier the ability to generate a Cashier Report for use in balancing the cash drawer during the end of day closing routine, or at any time during the day” with no limit to the number of times during the day that report may be generated. Again we are looking for the real time reporting. Also, these cashiering reports should be different than the reports requested in #9, which would need to include all the payment information pertinent, i.e. APN, Permit #, License #...

13) Will the selected vendor be taking over the Property Tax Web Payment Services currently offered on the County of Fresno’s Auditor-Controller Treasurer-Tax Collector web site?  

a) Yes.

14) Who is the current vendor offering these services?  

a) Official Payments hosts and processes our credit/debit payments.

15) What is the actual number of Property Tax transactions that the County collected in 2007?  

a) 7,779

i) What are the 2007 dollar amounts? 

b) $9,534,110

i) What is the estimated number of transactions you plan to collect for 2009?  

c) Unknown.

i) What is the estimated dollar amount you plan to collect for 2009?

d) Unknown.

i) What is the approximate amount of the smallest transaction size?

e) No less than $10.01. 
i) What is the approximate amount of the largest transaction size? 

f) Unknown.

16) Will there be other payment options besides Property Taxes that will be accepted on-line? (business license renewals, permits, parking fines/tickets, etc).  If yes, can you please provide the following information per application/department?

a) What is the actual number of transactions that the County collected in 2007?

i) 0

b) What is the actual dollar amount the County collected in 2007?

i) 0

c) What is the estimated number of transactions you plan to collect for 2009?

i) Unknown.

d) What is the estimated dollar amount you plan to collect for 2009?

i) Unknown.

e) What is the approximate amount of the smallest transaction size? 

i) Unknown.

f) What is the approximate amount of the largest transaction size? 

i) Unknown.

17) What is the total expected transaction volume? What is the volume of blind payments vs. payments tied to the live data?

i) Unknown at this time.

18) Please explain in more detail item #6 of the Scope of Work: The system should allow for effective dates (from and to) of fees, and retain fee amounts for those dates historically (for ability to enter potential back-log of old fee rates after change in new fee rates).

a) For example, rates change on April 11th. A payment is received on April 12th, but is postmarked April 10th. This payment should be against the rate active on April 10th, not the current/new rate.

19) Are the transactions in item #7 of the Scope of Work added in real-time or once a day via a single file transmission to each system?

a) Potentially both. Different departments may have different requirements. As a general rule for the AC/TTC Department, a daily batch transmission would be sufficient. If Real time transmissions are not possible, a mechanism for verifying the payment would be sufficient, such as a web-site that County staff could check for payments made.

20) Convenience fee model – We want to make sure we understand the county’s requirements for assessment of the convenience fee. Are we correct in reading the Scope of Work to mean that the customer will be assessed a convenience fee for use of the system, and that the county would like for the fee to be considered charged to the end user by the e-payments provider, but nevertheless the fee amount should be rolled up into the base payment amount so that the customer sees only one transaction? Or are two transactions acceptable, provided that initially both amounts are deposited to the county, with the county remitting the convenience fee back to us rather than our retaining it? At the most basic level, we need a final word on whether it would be we the vendor or the county charging the fee. 

a) Currently all monies are deposited with the vendor, and then a daily transfer minus the convenience fee (also referred to as a ‘discount’) is deposited with the County’s bank. A monthly reconciliation report is sent to the County detailing all transactions and fees. In this manner, the vendor is collecting their processing fee immediately and no fee remittance from the County is required.

21) Please explain the circumstances in which the user would be able to enter a fee amount themselves. That is, how would it be acceptable for the user to state their own fee? 

a) A particular County department may require the customer to pay an amount that is not verified by live data. In this instance, the customer would enter the amount they would like to pay, it will then be up to the department staff to manually verify the amount.

22) Percentage of payments that are e-check (ACH) 

a) 0% The County does not currently offer an e-check option.

23) Percentage of payments that are card-based 

a) Currently 100% of web and IVR payments are card based.

24) In reference to Scope of Work, page 18 under Functional Requirements, Item 2 - "The system should provide for blind collection of fees; fees collected without a corresponding system generated transaction.  The user should be able to enter a fee amount, an identifying number, such as APN, and a payment amount.  The system would then record the payment amount with identifier."

i) Is blind collection of fees referring to the Tax Fees or the Convenience/Processing fees?

(1) Neither. The convenience/processing fee will be a preset amount (percentage/flat rate) determined by the transaction type. A blind transaction will occur when the amount being remitted by the County’s customer is not verified against corresponding County supplied data source.

25) In reference to Scope of Work, page 18 under Functional Requirements, Item 7 - " The system should have the ability to add a successfully completed transaction to the appropriate County system (CUBS, Tax System, PeopleSoft) via multiple file formats."

i) Is the County going to be doing any system development to enable integration of processing system in to CUBS, PeopleSoft or Tax System?

(1) The County will accept a data file in a preset format from the Vendor and apply it the appropriate system. If direct integration is available this would be preferable though.
26) How many customers do you currently provide billing to on a monthly basis?  

a) Outside the scope of this RFP. The purpose of this RFP is to locate a vendor that can process credit/debit card as well as e-check type payments only.
27) What fees do you collect?  How are they collected? Drop box, web, counter, mail, bank file?

a) Payment for all chargeable County services, and other than Property taxes, they are all collected physically.

28) What software applications manage those fees currently? (Integration)

29) Do you currently accept credit cards or e-check’s?

a) Only credit/debit cards are accepted at this time.

30) Do you require check 21 (electronic check presentment)?
a) This is a desired feature, but not required within the scope of this RFP.
31) Do you want this solution to integrate with the County’s IVR or should this solution provide a hosted IVR system as well?

a) We would prefer a system capable of both. The current IVR in the Tax Collector’s office will remain intact, but other Departments may benefit from a vendor supplied IVR solution at a later date. The IVR portion should not be included in this RFP.

32) Who is the County’s current bank?

a) Bank of the West.

33) Why is the County issuing this RFP at this time?

a) The County is seeking to expand the services available to assist the public, at their convenience.

34) When was the last time the County went out to RFP and for what services?

a) Outside the scope of this RFP. The purpose of this RFP is to locate a vendor that can process credit/debit card as well as e-check type payments only.

35) What are the selection criteria used to evaluate the RFP responses and how will these criteria be weighted?
a) See No. 58.

36) After the RFP closing date, what is the estimated timeline for the evaluation and notification?

a) We estimate six to eight weeks
37) When does the County anticipate to award the contract?

a) We estimate six to eight weeks.
38) Will there be a finalist presentation – about when (which month) does the County anticipate this to be? 

a) Vendors may be invited to make oral presentations; this would occur four to six weeks from the RFP close date.
39) How will bidders be notified for the award? Via email and via fax or U.S. Mail or Overnight Courier?

a) U.S. Mail
40) Is this an RFP for Fresno County only or for all counties in the Central Valley Purchasing Group – King, Kerns, and Tulare? Will an exclusive contract be granted for all participants being issued? Please explain.

a) Fresno County only; other agencies may base their own contract on the RFP if allowed by vendor.

41) Functions Requirements #10 – Is this requirement requiring the system to support some type of tracking of entries made during the day by Cashiers?  Please explain.

a) Item #10 of the SCOPE OF WORK/Functional Requirements section has been deleted from RFP No. 962-4591.

42) Please provide access to a demo of the County's existing payment service so that we can closely replicate the service the taxpayers are currently familiar with and to meet the Count’s needs. Who is the current vendor and when does the contract expire?

a) https://www2.co.fresno.ca.us/0410/fresnoproptax/
43) What is the average payment amount? Residential? Commercial?

a) Currently no data available for segregation of residential versus commercial.

44) What is your anticipated transaction volume for e-checks?

a) Currently no data available for projections.

45) What is your anticipated transaction volume for credit cards? 

a) Currently no data available for projections.

46) When you indicate you are looking for "a provider to process credit card payments and e-checks"... Do you identify debit cards as part of that credit card offering?

a) Yes.

47) Do you ONLY want pricing and information regarding a convenience fee program (customer pays the fee)?

a) Include suggestions for alternatives.

48) Do you ever "waive" the fee?

a) Not for payments currently accepted via credit/debit card. It is unknown if other County Departments may waive fees.

49) Scope of Work - #5: Will the County clarify whether you mean for the system to allow for automated corrections (credits)?  Industry standard provides a confirmation number is given by the credit card company when a payment is made.  When a credit is issued, a confirmation number is not provided by the credit card company.  Will the County clarify if the vendor is expected to provide a "correction" confirmation number?

a) The County does not currently reverse any payments received via credit/debit card. Industry standard practices should be used.

50) General Requirements - Performance Bond: Will the County please clarify whether a Performance Bond will be required of the winning vendor?

a) This will be determined by County following review of the vendor’s proposal. The vendor should indicate the Bond cost in his/her proposal.
51) Scope of Work - #6: Will the County please define what you mean by "fees?"

a) For purposes of this item only, fees are the amounts collected by the County for Service.

52) Will the County consider systems provided in a service bureau environment (i.e. provided via a vendor-hosted web site and IVR)? 

a) For additional Departments, but nor currently for the Tax Collectors Department.

53) Will the proposed system be used by County employees, County taxpayers, or both? 

a) The system may be accessed to make payments by all citizens who have property, or do business, within the County of Fresno.

54) Is the County expecting the third party service provider to provide the acceptance of credit cards and e-checks at the point-of-sale? 

a) This RFP is only for services via web-site and IVR.

55) What other types of payments is the third party service provider expected to take in addition to residential payments?  Are there multiple logics needed for different types of payments? 

a) Yes, there may be multiple logics applied to payments from each Department. The extent of which is unknown at this time.

56) Please provide the annual number of households and businesses receiving tax bills from Fresno County.   What is the average transaction amount for each category?  

a) Approximately 320,000 tax bills are mailed each year.

57)   Does the County expect vendors to provide an oral presentation and demonstration of their solution? 

a) The vendor must be willing to provide and oral Presentation/Demonstration if requested.

58)   Will the County provide weighted criteria for Award?  Is price the highest priority in selecting a vendor? 

a) The award criteria are stated in the final section of the original RFP document. The weighting criteria will be released, but not the weighting itself. Price is an important consideration as are functionality, support, and vendor reference.
59) Has the County identified a “budget” for the project and if so, would you be willing to share this with the vendors?
a) A budget has been identified, but the County will not share the extent of that budget with vendors
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